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Bastin & Company, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Greene Metropolitan Housing Authority
Greene County

538 North Detroit Street

Xenia, OH 45385

To the Board of Commissioners:
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of thee@rdvietropolitan Housing Authority, Greene County,
Ohio (Authority), as of and for the year ended MaB1, 2023, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Auttytsibasic financial statements as listed in thmetaf
contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statetpaeferred to above present fairly, in all materia
respects, the financial position of the Greene bfmdlitan Housing Authority, Greene County, Ohicoas
March 31, 2023, and the changes in financial pmsiaind its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the accounting principles geneeadbepted in the United States of America.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with audistagdards generally accepted in the United Stdtes o
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable torfai@ audits contained iGovernment Auditing
Standards,issued by the Comptroller General of the UnitedteSta Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in fhalitor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the &irtial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be ietdelent of the Authority, and to meet our otherczthi
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevahical requirements relating to our audit. We dad
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sefficand appropriate to provide a basis for ourtaudi
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation aid dresentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of intemwitrol relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are fresn material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, managenserdgquired to evaluate whether there are conditoons
events, considered in the aggregate, that raisgtamtial doubt about the Authority’s ability to ¢ome
as a going concern for twelve months beyond thenfifal statement date, including any currently kmow
information that may raise substantial doubt skdhéreafter.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Famcial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurdmmat avhether the financial statements as a whae ar
free from material misstatement, whether due tadrar error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance ighalével of assurance but is not absolute assuramde
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conduntaccordance with GAAS ar@@overnment Auditing
Standardswill always detect a material misstatement whegxists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than doe resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misregmetations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there ®ulastantial likelihood that, individually or ineh
aggregate, they would influence the judgment mayleabreasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS &ual/ernment Auditing Standardse
« exercise professional judgment and maintain pradeasskepticism throughout the audit.

« identify and assess the risks of material misstatgmf the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit prapegsiresponsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence réggttie amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relévarthe audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, bufarothe purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal contrélccordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polioseed and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as weallasate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e conclude whether, in our judgment, there are canditor events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s &pildo continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those chargédgovernance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significaatlit findings, and certain internal control-rethte
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in thetebhiStates of Americeequire that thenanagement'’s
discussion and analysisind schedules of net pension and other post-gmglot benefit liabilities and
pension and other post-employment benefit coniohstbe presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibditynanagement and, although not a part of thecbasi
financial statements, is required by the Governalehtcounting Standards Board who considers itgo b
an essential part of financial reporting for placithe basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. Vadapplied certain limited procedures to the megli
supplementary information in accordance with andistandards generally accepted in the United State
of America, which consisted of inquiries of managetmabout the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency withnagement’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obthduring our audit of the basic financial statetsien
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We do not express an opinion or provide any asseran the information because the limited procesiure
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to exgsran opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formarg opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic finaakistatements. The Financial Data Schedules are
presented for purposes of additional analysis asimred by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development and are not a required part of thecdasncial statements. The Schedule of Experestur
of Federal Awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Coflé-ederal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, andlif Requirements for Federal Awaridspresented

for purposes of additional analysis and is notcgired part of the basic financial statements.

Such information is the responsibility of managetremd was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used tpgreethe basic financial statements. The informnati
has been subjected to the auditing procedureseapplithe audit of the basic financial statememis a
certain additional procedures, including comparamg reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used tpareethe basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additiprocedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of Americaour opinion, the Financial Data Schedules tuaed
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ardyfaiated, in all material respects, in relatiorthe
basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance witlsovernment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 23,20
on our consideration of the Authority’s internalntm! over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regigias, contracts and grant agreements and otheersatt
The purpose of that report is solely to descrilgestope of our testing of internal control oveafinial
reporting and compliance and the results of tteirtg, and not to provide an opinion on the efientess
of the Authority's internal control over financiaporting or on compliance. That report is andgraé
part of an audit performed in accordance v@tivernment Auditing Sandardsin considering the
Authority's internal control over financial repaorgi and compliance.

m C asy O{Jtc
ﬁé@éf 9‘2/ /’?77 /

Williamsburg, Ohio
August 4, 2023



GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
UNAUDITED

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)thé Greene Metropolitan Housing Authority
(Authority) provides an introduction and overview the financial statements of the Authority for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2023. The Authoritgsents this discussion and analysis of its findncia
performance during the fiscal year ended March2B23, to assist the reader in focusing on significa
financial issues.

Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MIP& designed to focus on the current year’s
activities, resulting changes, and currently kndagts, please read it in conjunction with the Auityts
financial statements (beginning on page 10).

IFINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS |

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023:
» The Authority’s net position decreased by $695,024.
« The Authority’s total revenue increased by $524,@88}.6 percent.

* The Authority’s total expenses increased by $1 %24 por 14.9 percent.

IUSING THIS ANNUAL REPORT |

The following is a list of the basic financial gatents included in this report:

Management Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes Folsigibn
Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the Financial Statements

The financial statements are designed to providelaes with a broad overview of the Authority's
finances in a manner similar to a private sectairmss.

The statement of net positiggresents information on all of the Authority's dssend liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net posit@wer time, increases or decreases in net positiay
serve as a useful indicator of whether the findrpmaition of the Authority is improving or deteraing.

The focus of the statement of net position (theéstricted” net position) is designed to represkatnet
available liquid (non-capital) assets, net of lidibis, for the entire Authority. Net positiontigported in
three broad categories.

Net Investment in Capital Assetsthis component of net position consists of cagssets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstgndatances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or
other borrowings that have been used for the aitigmisconstruction, or improvement of those assets
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GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
UNAUDITED

Restricted Net PositionThis component of net position consists of retd assets, when constraints
are placed on the asset by creditors (such ascdgbhants), grantors, contributors, laws, reguhatio
etc.

Unrestricted Net PositionThis component of net position consists of nedian that does not meet
the definition of Net Investment in Capital AssetsRestricted Net Position.

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes posigonis similar to an income statement. This
statement includes operating revenues, such aa rrabme; operating expenses, such as adminisrati
utilities, maintenance, and depreciation; and nperating revenue and expenses, such as investment
income, gains and losses on capital asset dispasdlgiterest expense.

The focus of the statement of revenues, expengkstamges in net position is the Increase (Decyéase
Net Position, which is similar to Net Income or kos

The statement of cash flowwovides information about the Authority's casheipts and cash payments
during the reporting period. The statement repoaish receipts, cash payments, and net changeshn c
resulting fromoperating activities, capital and related financgjvities and investing activities.

The notes to the financial statememgsovide additional information essential to a fufiderstanding of
the data provided in the basic financial statements

The Authority’s Programs

The Authority administers several programs that @esented as a single business activity enterprise
Significant programs consist of the following:

* Public and Indian Housing- Under the conventional Public Housing Prograne, Authority
rents units it owns to low-income households. Tiegram is operated under an Annual
Contribution Contract (ACC) with HUD, and HUD proeis an Operating Subsidy to enable the
PHA to provide the housing at a rent that is bagsoh 30 percent of adjusted gross household
income.

e Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher ProgramUnder the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher
Program, low-income tenants lease housing uniectyr from private landlords rather than from
the Authority. Through Annual Contribution Contreowith HUD, the Authority receives
funding to subsidize the rent of low-income fanslia the private market. The Authority earns
an administrative fee from HUD to cover the progsagperating costs.

» Section 8 New Construction The Authority administers Section 8 rental assise programs
where the Department of Housing and Urban Developnesters into annual contribution
contracts with a private owner. The owner rentasing to eligible low-income families who
typically pay rent of 30 percent of adjusted grims&®me. The remaining portion of the rent for
the unit is paid to the owner by HUD through the BH&ontract. The Authority earns an
administrative fee for the services renderBde Authority has acquired 17 units under the Multi
Family program called Yellow Springs Village Gredaethis business segment.



GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
UNAUDITED

» Capital Fund Program (CFP) - the Capital Fund Program provides funding to iovwer the
physical conditions and upgrade management of tpasato ensure that properties continue to
be available to service low-income families. ClRding is based on a formula allocation that
takes into consideration the size and age of thtadkity’s housing stock.

» Business Activities - Business activities include the operations ofsg#a Shelter, Inc. which
maintains 8 townhome units plus 1 single familytamd sixteen single-family homes purchased
by the Authority to preserve affordable housind,adlwhich are being rented to low-income
families. The Authority has also purchased a pgpecated at 514 N. Detroit Street which is
adjacent to the current Authority offices.

Sensible Shelter, Inc. assumed the assets antitiksbof Wise Manor Partnership which rented

townhouses and homes to low-income families. Tdmds were later sold below cost to long-

term renters who were given credit for time rentddans to Wise Manor Partnership were

forgiven. The original funding for the loans waade possible by grants to Sensible Shelter, Inc.
in prior years. The housing tax credit project wasictured this way so that Sensible Shelter,
Inc. could assume ownership and sell the homeshmiarket value to the renters.

IFINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY |

Statement of Net Position

The following table reflects the condensed StatérnémMNet Position as of March 31 compared to prior
fiscal year.

Table 1 - Condensed Statement of Net Position Comyeal to Prior Year

Assets 202¢ 2022

Current and Other Assets $ 4,277,706 $ 4,845,337
Capital Assets 5,794,248 6,116,229
Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,118,978 225,998

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 11,190,932 $ 11,187,564

Liabilities

Current Liabilities $ 469,838 $ 563,195
Long-term Liabilities 3,215,503 1,175,105
Deferred Inflows of Resources 27,122 1,275,771
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,712,463 3,014,071
Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 5,583,737 5,861,169
Restricted 6,365 431,943
Unrestricted 1,888,367 1,880,381
Total Net Position 7,478,469 8,173,493
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 11,190,932 $ 11,187,564




GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
UNAUDITED

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Net Positin

The notable changes on the Statement of Net Positie to the deferred outflows, deferred inflowd an
the long-term liabilities. These changes are altred changes in the amounts reported by the pensi
and OPEB plans and represent the Authority’s ptopuaite share of changes in the plans during the ye

The change in long-term liabilities between 2028 3023 closely corresponds to the increase in ¢he n
pension liability/asset of $2,194,169. The combinet pension/OPEB liability/asset was $580,38a@fas
March 31, 2022. This increased to a net pensioBEORability of $2,774,556 as of March 31, 2023.
The net pension liability is reported pursuant t&aSB Statement No. 68 and GASB Statement No. 75.
These liabilities do not truly reflect an operatisgue at the Authority but rather reflect changethe
Public Employees Retirement System. GASB Statesnidot 68 and 75 require the Authority to report
on its financial statements what is determinedet@dshare of the unfunded pension and OPEB iligisil
and related balances of the Ohio Public Employestsdtnent System (OPERS). The concept behind the
standards is that for OPERS to resolve the unfumpdedion and OPEB liability it has, it will have to
modify the funding burden on the entities that dbote to it. State law mandates that employedbh®f
Authority are participants in OPERS and that thehauty makes retirement and OPEB contributions to
OPERS on behalf of all of its employees. So, enbkher liabilities the Authority reports at Mar8h,
2023, the net pension and OPEB liability do notreepnt an invoice to be paid by the Authority after
March 31, 2023.

Statement of Revenues & Expenses and Changes in Natsition

The following table reflects the condensed StaténwénNet Position for the year ended March 31
compared to prior fiscal year.

Table 2 - Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expensesl Changes in Net Position

Revenues 2023 2022
Tenant Revenue $ 1,255,181 $ 1,351,145
Operating Subsidies and Grants 10,121,545 9,688,339
Capital Grarts 296,111 186,120
Other Revenues 138,235 61,370
Total Revenues 11,811,072 11,286,974
Expenses

Administrative 1,954,478 1,307,094
Tenant Services 51,543 63,619
Utilities 152,882 141,479
Maintenance 1,071,340 818,602
General and Interest Expense 585,007 551,629
Housing Assistance Payments 8,058,952 7,379,794
Depreciation 631,894 622,355
Total Expenses 12,506,096 10,884,572
Change in Net Positiol $ (695,024 _$ 402,40:



GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
UNAUDITED

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Revenuedxpenses and Changes in Net Position

Increases in revenues over the past year werexapmiely $524,000, while increases in expenses were
approximately $1,622,000. The largest increasasvenues were subsidies for HAP which is funding
for the Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers prograrhe Capital Fund Program grants that are used to
make capital improvements also increased by al®tikd,000.

The largest increases in expenses were in adnaitigr category. Contributing to the change in
administrative expense was recognizing approximéi2D2,000 more of pension and OPEB expense in
excess of required contributions to the pension@R&B plans during fiscal year 2023, while thetesla
amount recognized in fiscal year 2022 reduced esgreiy $507,000. Without the pension and OPEB
related items, administrative expenses remainedively consistent. Again, these expenses dorabt t
reflect an operating expense at the Authority bather reflect changes at the Public Employees
Retirement System. GASB Statements No. 68 ande@Gine the Authority to report on its financial
statements what is determined to be its shareegbéimsion and OPEB expense.

ICAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION |

Capital Assets

As of March 31, 2023, the Authority’s capital assekre $5,794,248 (capital assets net of accunulate
depreciation) as reflected in the following schedul

Table 3 - Capital Assets at Year End (Net of Depréation)

Land $ 2,457,666
Buildings 24,264,347
Furniture and Equipment - Dwellings 398,509
Furniture and Equipment - Administrative 497,293
Leasehold Improvements 2,512,505
30,130,320
Accumulated Depreciation (24,336,072)
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 5,794,248

Net capital assets decreased by $321,981 from M&kcR022, when net capital assets were $6,116,229.
Depreciation expense of $631,894 was offset bytttitions from capital grants and non-federal sesirc

See Note 4 of the notes to the financial statenfentdetailed information.



GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
UNAUDITED

Debt

As of March 31, 2023, the Authority had one outdiag loan totaling $210,511, of which $46,879 iedu
within one year. The following is a summary:

Table 4 - Debt Outstanding at Year End

US Bank Loan for Quail Run Single Homes Project $ 210,

See Note 10 of the notes to the financial statesfentdetailed information.

[ECONOMIC CONDITIONS |

Significant economic factors affecting the Authpidtre as follows:
» Federal funding is at the discretion of the Deparitof Housing and Urban Development.

« Local inflationary, recessionary and employmenhde which can affect resident incomes and,
therefore, the amount of rental income.

* Inflationary pressure on health insurance, propéarsurance and utility rates affect the cost of
operating the programs.

ICONTACTING THE AUTHORITY |

Questions concerning any of the information proglide this report, or requests for additional
information should be addressed to: Ms. Brenda Broatl, Executive Director, Greene Metropolitan
Housing Authority, 538 North Detroit Street, Xen@hio 45385, or call (937) 376-2908.



GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
GREENE COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
MARCH 31, 2023

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivaents
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables - Net of Allowance
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets
Total Current Assets

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net
Assets Held for Resale

Total Noncurrent Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resour ces
Pension
OPEB

Total Deferred Outflows of Resour ces

Total Assetsand Deferred Outflows of Resour ces

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences
Tenant Security Deposits
Unearned Revenue
Accrued Wages and Payroll Taxes
Accrued Interest Payable
Intergovernmental Payable
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Accrued Compensated Absences - Net of Current Portion
Long-Term Debt - Net of Current Portion
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension
OPEB

Total Deferred I nflows of Resources

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position

3,739,777
124,960
60,620
17,333
124,642
4,067,332

2,457,666
3,336,582

210,374
6,004,622

951,865
167,113
1,118,978

11,190,932

24,797
97,209
125,940
49,270
32,263
792
92,688
46,879
469,838

277,315
163,632
2,718,570
55,986
3,215,503

3,685,341

8,657
18,465
27,122

5,583,737

6,365
1,888,367
7,478,469

11,190,932



GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
GREENE COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Operating Revenues

Government Grants $ 10,121,54
Tenant Revenue 1,255,18
Other Revenue 134,19
Total Operating Revenues 11,510,92

Operating Expenses

Administrative 1,954,47
Tenant Services 51,54
Utilities 152,88
Maintenance 1,071,34
General 572,89
Housing Assistance Payments 8,058,95
Total Operating Expenses Before Depreciation 11,862,09
Income (Loss) Before Depreciation (351,172)
Depreciation 631,89
Operating Income (Loss) (983,066)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest and Investment Revenue 4,03

Interest Expense (12,108)
Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) (8,069)
Income (Loss) Before Capital Grants (991,135)
Capital Grants 296,11
Change in Net Position (695,024)
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year 8,173,49
Total Net Position, End of Year $ 7,478,46

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statementantegral part of these statements.
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GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
GREENE COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Operating Grants Received $ 10,142,574
Tenant Revenue Received 1,098,026
Other Revenue Received 134,196
Administrative Expenses (1,683,518)
Other Operating Expenses (1,840,344)
Housing Assistance Payments (8,058,952)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (208,018)
Cash Flows From Capital And Related Financing Actiities
Capital Grants Received 296,111
Principal and Interest on Debt (55,865)
Assets Held for Resale (713)
Property and Equipment Purchased (309,913)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Fancing Activities (70,380)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest Earned 4,039
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 4,039
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equisalent (274,359)
Cash And Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 4,139,096
Cash And Cash Equivalents, End of Yee $ 3,864,73
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) To
Net Cash Provided (Uses) by Operating Activitie
Net Operating Income (Loss) $  (983,066)
Adjustments To Reconcile Operating income (LossNEb Cash Provided By Operating Activities
Depreciation 631,894
(Increase)Decrease in:
Accounts Receivable 25,899
Prepaid Assets (8,831)
Inventory (529)
Net OPEB Asset 277,446
Deferred Outflows (892,980)
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable (19,295)
Accrued Expenses 540
Unearned Revenue (162,025)
Intergovernmental Payable 16,627
Tenant Security Deposits 8,320
Compensated Absences 179,908
Net Pension Liability 1,966,723
Deferred Inflows (1,248,649)
Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activitie $ (208,018

The accompanying notes to the basic financial stamgs are an integral part of these statements.
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GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of the Entity

The Greene Metropolitan Housing Authority was adainder the Ohio Revised Code, Section 3735.27.
The Authority contracts with the United States Dépant of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to
provide low and moderate income persons with safesanitary housing through subsidies provided by
HUD. The Authority depends on the subsidies frobCHo operate.

The accompanying financial statements comply witle frovision of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14 (as amende®GA$B Statement No. 61), the Financial
Reporting Entity, in that the financial statemeimslude all organizations, activities and functidos
which the Authority is financially accountable. iShreport includes all activities considered by
management to be part of the Authority by virtueSetction 2100 of the Codification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Section 2100 indicates that the reporting entitysists of a) the primary government, b) organizegifor
which the primary government is financially accabié and c) other organizations for which the reatur
and significance of their relationship with therpairy government are such that exclusion would cause
the reporting entity’s financial statements to beleading or incomplete.

The definition of the reporting entity is basednmarily on the notion of financial accountabilityA
primary government is financially accountable foe torganizations that make up its legal entityis It
also financially accountable for legally separatganizations if its officials appoint a voting majg of

an organization’s government body and either d@hie to impose its will on that organization orrthis a
potential for the organization to provide specfiicancial benefits to, or to impose specific finehc
burdens on, the primary government. A primary gonent may also be financially accountable for
governmental organizations that are fiscally depehdn it.

A primary government has the ability to imposenit on an organization if it can significantly inence
the programs, projects, or activities of, or theeleof services performed or provided by, the oizgtion.

A financial benefit or burden relationship exisfstlie primary government a) is entitled to the
organization’s resources; b) is legally obligatedhas otherwise assumed the obligation to finahee t
deficits of, or provide financial support to, theyanization; or c) is obligated in some mannettiierdebt
of the organization.

Management believes the financial statements iecud this report represent all of the funds of the
Authority over which the Authority is financiallycaountable.

Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements of the Authority endbeen prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stafe&merica. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting bfmdyestablishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. &Xdification of Accounting and Financial ReportiGuidance,
contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICR#@&uncementsthe Authority follows GASB
guidance as applicable to enterprise funds.
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GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2023

The Authority’s financial statements consist of tatament of net position, a statement of revenue,
expenses and changes in net position, and a statefmeash flows.

The Authority uses a single enterprise fund to madinits financial records on an accrual basisurd is
defined as a fiscal and accounting entity withl&lsglancing set of accounts.

Enterprise fund reporting focuses on the deterranadf the change in net position, financial pasiti
and cash flows. An enterprise fund may be usexttount for any activity for which a fee is charged
external users for goods and services.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The enterprise fund is accounted for on a flowa@r®mic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. All assets and all liabifitiassociated with the operation of the Authoritg ar
included on the Statement of Net Position. TheeBtant of Changes in Net Position presents incsease
(i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenséstpimet position. The Statement of Cash Flovevipies
information about how the Authority finances andetseghe cash flow needs of its enterprise activity.

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues exyenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from prayigervices and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal oimggp operations. The principal operating revenues o
the Authority’s enterprise fund are charges to mém&or rent and operating subsidies from HUD.
Operating expenses for the enterprise fund inctbdecosts of facility maintenance, housing asst&an
payments, administrative expenses, and depreciationapital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-opegatevenues and expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority considers all highly liquid investnter{including restricted assets) with a maturitytoke
months or less when purchased to be cash equisalent

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Costs thatially add to the productive capacity or extend life
of an asset are capitalized while maintenance apdir costs are expensed as incurred. Depreciation
computed on the straight line method based ondlterfing estimated useful lives:

Buildings 40 years
Building Improvements 15 years
Land Improvements 15 years
Equipment 7 years
Automobiles 5 years
Computer Hardware and Software 3 years

Compensated Absences

The Authority accounts for compensated absencesdordance with GASB Statement No. 16. Sick
leave and other compensated absences with sinhigaacteristics are accrued as a liability basethen
sick leave accumulated at the balance sheet dateobg employees who currently are eligible toikece
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termination payments. To calculate the liabilithese accumulations are reduced to the maximum
amount allowed as a termination payment. All eppés who meet the termination policy of the
Authority for years of service are included in tbalculation of the compensated absences accrual
amount.

Vacation leave and other compensated absencessiwittar characteristics are accrued as a liabdiy
the benefits are earned by the employees if bothefollowing conditions are mefl) the employees’
rights to receive compensation are attributableeiwvices already rendered and are not contingefat on
specific event that is outside the control of timepyer and employee; an@) it is probable that the
employer will compensate the employees for the fitsrtarough paid time off or some other meanshsuc
as cash payments at termination or retirement.

In the proprietary fund, the compensated absereesxpensed when earned with the amount reported as
a liability. Information regarding compensatedeaiz®s is detailed in Note 8.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statements of finangdaition will sometimes report a separate sectmm f
deferred outflows of resources. Deferred outflmiisesources represent a consumption of net pasitio
that applies to a future period and will not beogruzed as an outflow of resources (expense/exparli
until then. For the Authority, deferred outflowkresources are reported on the statement of regtigro

for pension and OPEB. The deferred outflows obueses related to pension and OPEB are explained in
Note 6 and 7.

In addition to liabilities, the statements of filéad position report a separate for deferred inBoof
resources. Deferred inflows of resources represerecquisition of net position that applies tagaurfe
period and will not be recognized until that timeor the Authority, deferred inflows of resources a
reported on the statement of net position for pensind OPEB. The deferred inflows of resources
related to pension and OPEB are explained in Nated57.

Pensions/Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net pension/OPEHityalmleferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions/OPEB, padsion/OPEB expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the pension/OPEB plang auditions to/deductions from their fiduciary net

position have been determined on the same bagieasire reported by the pension/OPEB plan. Her th

purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of lege® contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Jdmsion/OPEB plans report investments at fair value

Net Position

Net position is the residual amount when compaasgets and liabilities. The net investment in tehpi
assets component of net position consists of dagmtsets, net of accumulated depreciation, redbged
the outstanding balances of any borrowing usethimacquisition, construction, or improvement afs
assets. The restricted component of net posiiaeported when there are limitations imposed eir th
use either through constitutional provisions or bding legislation or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regoretiof other governments.
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Revenue Recognition

Subsidies and grants received from HUD and othantgrs are generally recognized during the periods
to which they relate and all eligibility requirenmerave been satisfied. Eligibility requirememtsliide
timing requirements, which specify the year whemridassources are required to be used or the year whe
use is first permitted; matching requirements, ol the Authority must provide local resources&o
used for a specified purpose; and expenditure rexpgints, in which the resources are provided to the
Authority on a reimbursement basis. Tenant rengakenues are recognized during the period of
occupancy. Other receipts are recognized whenreteed expenses are incurred. Expenses are
recognized as incurred.

Revenues and Expenses

The Authority distinguishes operating revenues awgenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from prayigdervices and producing and delivering goods in
connection with an enterprise fund’s principal oingooperations. The principal operating revenues o
the Authority’s enterprise fund are charges to méemdor rent and operating subsidies from HUD.
Operating expenses for the enterprise fund incthdecosts of facility maintenance, housing asstgtan
payments, administrative expenses, and depreciationapital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonopegatavenues and expenses.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia
United States of America requires management toengskimates and assumptions that affect reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosureasftingent assets and liabilities at the datehef t
financial statement, and the reported amounts wémee and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

State statutes classify monies held by the Autharib three categories.

Active deposits are public deposits necessary tet ci@rent demands on the treasury. Such monies mu
be maintained either as cash in the Authority’'s astey, in commercial accounts payable or
withdrawable on demand, including negotiable oaferithdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market
deposit accounts.

Inactive deposits are public deposits that the Auity has identified as not required for use witktie
current two-year period of designation of depo@tar Inactive deposits must either be evidenced by
certificates of deposit maturing not later than e¢ne of the current period of designation of dejposs,

or by savings or deposit accounts including, batintdted to passbook accounts.
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Interim deposits are deposits of interim moniestedim monies are those monies, which are not neede
for immediate use, but which will be needed beftire end of the current period of designation of
depositories. Interim deposits must be evidengetinte certificates of deposit maturing not morarth
one year from the date of deposit or by savingseposit accounts including passbook accounts.

Protection of Authority’s deposits is provided IhetFederal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), by
eligible securities pledged by the financial ingiin as security for repayment, by Surety Company
bonds deposited with the treasurer by the finang#itution or by a single collateral pool estabkd by
the financial institution to secure the repaymdrdlbpublic monies deposited with the institution.

At March 31, 2023, the carrying amount of the Auity’s deposits totaled $3,864,737 and its bank
balance was $3,901,013. Based on the criteriaridescin GASB Statement No. 40, “Deposit and
Investment Risk Disclosure,” as of March 31, 20238tal of $3,423,898 was exposed to custodialagsk
discussed below, while $477,115 of the bank balamas covered by the Federal Depository Insurance
Corporation.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the ewveh bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may
returned. The Authority’s policy is to place deisvith major local banks approved by the Authgsit
Board. All deposits are collateralized with eligilsecurities in amounts equal to at least 105gperof

the carrying value of deposits. Such collaterslpermitted by Chapter 135 of the Ohio Revised Cizde
held in financial institution pools at Federal ReseBanks, or at member banks of the federal reserv
system, in the name of the respective depositonk lzand pledged as a pool of collateral against the
public deposits it holds or as specific collatdnald at the Federal Reserve Bank in the name of the
Authority.

Investments
The Authority had no investments at March 31, 2023.
NOTE 3 — RESTRICTED CASH

The restricted cash balance of $124,960 on thediahstatements represents tenant security depasit
excess funding received for the Housing Choice Vieuprogram.
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NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of the changes in cpisaets:

Balance Balance
3/31/2022 Additions Deletions 3/31/2023
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land $ 2,457,666 $ - $ - $ 2,457,666
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 2,457,666 - - 2,457,666
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Buildings 24,028,665 235,682 - 24,264,347
Furniture, Equipment and Machinery
Dwellings 332,504 66,005 - 398,509
Administrative 512,467 1,826 (17,000) 497,293
Leasehold Improvements 2,506,105 6,400 - 2,512,505
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 27,379,741 309,913 (17,000) 27,672,654
Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements (23,047,296) (543,043) 17,000 (23,573,339)
Furniture, Equipment and Machinery (673,882) (88,851) - (762,733)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (23,721,178) (631,894) 17,000 (24,336,072)
Depreciable Assets, Net 3,658,563 (321,981) - 3,336,582
Total Capital Assets, Ne $ 6,116,22 $ (321,981 $ - $ 5,794,24

NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED NET POSITION
The Authority’s restricted net position is as felis

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Funds ProvidedHfauising

Assistance Payments in Excess of Amounts Used 6%6,3
Total Restricted Net Position $6,365

NOTE 6 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

The employees of Authority are covered by the Ghiblic Employees Retirement System. The State of
Ohio accounts for the activities of the retiremgydtems and the amounts of these funds are nettedl
in the accompanying financial statements.

Net Pension Liability

The net pension liability reported on the statenméniet position represents a liability to employder
pensions. Pensions are a component of exchangesattions—between an employer and its
employees—of salaries and benefits for employedcas. Pensions are provided to an employee—on a
deferred-payment basis—as part of the total congimmspackage offered by an employer for employee
services each financial period. The obligatiorsdarifice resources for pensions is a present atiidig
because it was created as a result of employmehbeges that already have occurred.
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The net pension liability represents the Authostproportionate share of each pension plan’s dolkec
actuarial present value of projected benefit paymattributable to past periods of service, ne¢axth
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The netgen liability calculation is dependent on critid¢ahg-
term variables, including estimated average lifpeetancies, earnings on investments, cost of living
adjustments and others. While these estimateghgsdest information available, unknowable future
events require adjusting this estimate annually.

Ohio Revised Code limits the Authority’s obligatifor this liability to annually required payment$he
Authority cannot control benefit terms or the manire which pensions are financed; however, the
Authority does receive the benefit of employeesviees in exchange for compensation including
pension.

GASB 68 assumes the liability is solely the obligatof the employer, because (1) they benefit from
employee services; and (2) State statute requitefurading to come from these employers. All
contributions to date have come solely from thaspleyers (which also includes costs paid in thenfor

of withholdings from employees). State statuteine the pension plans to amortize unfunded ltadsl
within 30 years. If the amortization period exce& years, each pension plan’s board must propose
corrective action to the State legislature. Anguteng legislative change to benefits or fundiroyid
significantly affect the net pension liability. &dting adjustments to the net pension liabilitywabbe
effective when the changes are legally enforceable.

The proportionate share of each plan’s unfundeefiieris presented as a long-tenet pension liability
on the accrual basis of accounting. Any liabilior the contractually-required pension contribution
outstanding at the end of the year is includedniergovernmental payablen both the accrual and
modified accrual bases of accounting.

Plan Description — Ohio Public Employees Retiremeystem (OPERS)

Plan Description - Authority employees participatethe Ohio Public Employees Retirement System
(OPERS). OPERS administers three separate peptanms. The traditional pension plan is a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pensigan. The member-directed plan is a defined
contribution plan and the combined plan is a charisg, multiple-employer defined benefit pensidanp
with defined contribution features. While membgrsy. Authority employees) may elect the member-
directed plan and the combined plan, substantiéllgmployee members are in OPERS’ traditional jplan
therefore, the following disclosure focuses ontthditional pension plan.

OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor aeath benefits, and annual cost of living adjustisie
to members of the traditional plan. Authority siablish and amend benefits is provided by Chajptbr

of the Ohio Revised Code. OPERS issues a stamg-afimancial report that includes financial
statements, required supplementary information @etdiled information about OPERS’ fiduciary net
position that may be obtained by visitihtips://www.opers.org/financial/reports.shirol writing to the
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System, 277 EasinTStreet, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642, or by
calling 800-222-7377.

Senate Bill (SB) 343 was enacted into law with #aative date of January 7, 2013. In the legiskati
members were categorized into three groups withivgrprovisions of the law applicable to each group
The following table provides age and service rezugnts for retirement and the retirement formula
applied to final average salary (FAS) for the threember groups under the traditional plan as per th
reduced benefits adopted by SB 343 (see OPERS A€fieRenced above for additional information):
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Group A Group B Group C
Eligible to retire prior to 20 years of service dtemtior to Members not in other Groups
January 7, 2013 or five years January 7, 2013 giblelito retire and members hired on or after
after January 7, 2013 ten years after January 3 201 January 7, 2013
State and Local State and Local State and Local
Age and Senice Requirements: Age and Senice Regeiments: Age and Senvice Requirements:

Age 60 with 60 months of service credit Age 60 wdthmonths of service credit Age 57 with 25 yearsea¥ice credit
or Age 55 with 25 years of service credit  or Agewsith 25 years of service crecit or Age 62 with 5rgeaf service credit

Formula: Formula: Formula:
2.2% of FAS multiplied by years of 2.2% of FAS mpliéd by years of 2.2% of FAS multiplied by years of
service for the first 30 years and 2.5% servicelferfirst 30 years and 2.5% service for the firsy®8ars and 2.5%
for service years in excess of 30 for service yeaexcess of 30 for service years in excess of 35

Final Average Salary (FAS) represents the aver&gfeeahree highest years of earnings over a member
career for Groups A and B. Group C is based oratleeage of the five highest years of earnings aver
member’s career.

Members who retire before meeting the age and yehrservice credit requirement for unreduced
benefits receive a percentage reduction in thefltexreount. The amount of a member’s pension bénefi
vests upon receipt of the initial benefit payment.

When a benefit recipient has received benefitd fomonths, an annual cost of living adjustment (BPDL

is provided. This COLA is calculated on the bastirament benefit at the date of retirement anclois
compounded. For those retiring prior to Januarg@13, the COLA will continue to be a 3 percent
simple annual COLA. For those retiring subsequedanuary 7, 2013, beginning in calendar year 2019
the COLA will be based on the average percentagease in the Consumer Price Index, capped at 3
percent.

Funding Policy - The Ohio Revised Code (ORC) presidtatutory authority for member and employer
contributions as follows:

State
and Local

2022 Statutory Maximum Contribution Rates
Employer 14.00 %
Employee 10.00 %
2022 Actual Contribution Rates
Employer

Pension 14.00 %

Post-employment Health Care Benefits 0.00 %
Total Employe 14.00C %
Employet 10.0C %

Employer contribution rates are actuarially deteedi and are expressed as a percentage of covered
payrolls. The Authority’s contractually requiredntribution was $209,390 for fiscal year end MaBah
2023. The entire amount was used to fund penstoefii.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferr@iitflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

The net pension liability for OPERS was measuredfaBecember 31, 2022 and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension lidhilivas determined by an actuarial valuation ashaf tlate.
The Authority's proportion of the net pension llapiwas based on the Authority's share of contiims

to the pension plan relative to the contributiofisalb participating entities. Following is inforrman
related to the proportionate share and pensionnsepe

Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 7$3,570
Proportion of the Net Pension Liability-Current Maeement Date 0.009203%
Proportion of the Net Pension Liability-Prior Messuent Date 0.009285%
Percentage change -0.000082%
Pension Expense $252,802

At March 31, 2023, the Authority reported deferredgtflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following ces:

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Change in proportionate share $7,951
Change in assumptions 28,720
Differences between expected and

actual experience 90,299 -
Authority contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 50,021
Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan investments 4,87
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $951,865

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Change in proportionate share $8,657
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $8,657

$50,021 reported as deferred outflows of resounedated to pension resulting from Authority
contributions subsequent to the measurement dditdevrecognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ending March 31, 2024. Otla@nounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensitl be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending March 31:

2024 $107,293
2025 178,223
2026 228,084
2027 379,587
Total $893,18
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Actuarial Assumptions - OPERS

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve imsttes of the values of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrenceewénts far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, eost trends. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual review or modification as atttesults are compared with past expectationshamnd
estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting poses are based on the substantive plan (the plan a
understood by the employers and plan members)rarhaidie the types of benefits provided at the tihe o
each valuation. The total pension liability in thecember 31, 2022 actuarial valuation was deteazthin
using the following actuarial assumptions, apptedll prior periods included in the measurement:

Wage Inflation 2.75 percent
Experience Study 5-Year Period Ended December 20 20
Actuarial Cost Method Individual entry age
Actuarial Assumptions
Investment Rate of Return 6.9 percent
Wage Inflation 2.75 percent
Projected Salary Increases 2.75%-10.75% (includer inflation at 2.75%)
Cost-of-living Adjustments Pre-1/7/2013 Retireg€0% Simple

Post-1/7/2013 Retirees: 3.00% Simple
through 2023, then 2.05% Simple

Pre-retirement mortality rates are based on 130%h@fPub-2010 General Employee Mortality tables
(males and females) for State and Local Governndérisions and 170% of the Pub-2010 Safety
Employee Mortality tables (males and females) far Public Safety and Law Enforcement divisions.
Post-retirement mortality rates are based on 116#eoPubG-2010 Retiree Mortality Tables (males and
females) for all divisions. Post-retirement mottaliates for disabled retirees are based on thé&Bub
2010 Disabled Retiree Mortality Tables (males ammhdles) for all divisions. For all of the previousl
described tables, the base year is 2010 and nigntales for a particular calendar year are detegthby
applying the MP-2020 mortality improvement scaleales and females) to all of these tables.

The discount rate used to measure the total perisibitity was 6.9 percent. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assuhegdcontributions from plan members and those ®f th
contributing employers are made at the statutoeijuired rates. Based on those assumptions, tistope
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to baikable to make all projected future benefits pagita of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-ternmeetqul rate of return on pension plan investments wa
applied to all periods of projected benefit paymetat determine the total pension liability.

The allocation of investment assets with the DefiBenefit portfolio is approved by the OPERS Board
of Trustees as outlined in the annual investmean.@Plan assets are managed on a total returnvoifisis

a long-term objective of achieving and maintainnfylly funded status for the benefits providedtigh

the defined benefit pension plans. The long-teripeeted rate of return on defined benefit investment
assets was determined using a building-block methoahich best-estimate ranges of expected future
rates of return are developed for each major atas$. These ranges are combined to produce the lon
term expected rate of return by weighting the etgueéuture rates of return by the target assetation
percentage, adjusted for inflation. Best estimatksirithmetic rates of return were provided by the
Board’s investment consultant. For each major askets that is included in the Defined Benefit
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portfolio’s target asset allocation as of DecemBgr 2022, these best estimates are summaries in the
following table:

Weighted Average
Long-Term Expected

Target Real Rate of Return
Asset Class Allocation (Geometic)
Fixed Income 22.00 % 2.62 %
Domestic Equities 22.00 4.60
Real Estate 13.00 3.27
Private Equity 15.00 7.53
International Equities 21.00 5.51
Risk Parity 2.00 4.37
Other Investments 5.00 3.27

Total 100.00 %

During 2022, OPERS managed investments in threestment portfolios: the Defined Benefit portfolio,
the Health Care portfolio and the Defined Contiitnuiportfolio. The Defined Benefit portfolio contes
the investment assets of the Traditional Pensian,Rhe defined benefit component of the Combined
Plan and the annuitized accounts of the MembereRitePlan. Within the Defined Benefit portfolio,
contributions into the plans are all recorded atdhme time, and benefit payments all occur ofirste

of the month. Accordingly, the money-weighted rafteeturn is considered to be the same for allplan
within the portfolio. The annual money-weighteceraf return expressing investment performancephet
investment expenses and adjusted for the changiogiats actually invested, for the Defined Benefit
portfolio was a loss of 12.1% for 2022.

Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Sharef the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount RateThe following table presents the Authority’s prapmnate share of the net pension
liability calculated using the current period dignbrate assumption of 6.9 percent, as well as Wt
Authority’s proportionate share of the net pendiahility would be if it were calculated using asdount
rate that is one-percentage-point lower (5.9 pdyaarone-percentage-point higher (7.9 percent) tha
current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.90%) (6.90%) (7.90%)
Authority's proportionate share
of the net pension liability $4,072,328 $2,718,570 1,686,676

NOTE 7 — DEFINED BENEFIT OPEB PLAN

The employees of the Authority are covered by theo®ublic Employees Retirement System. The State
of Ohio accounts for the activities of the retiremneystems and the amounts of these funds are not
reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

Net OPEB Liability

The net OPEB liability reported on the statemenhetf position represents a liability to employees f
OPEB. OPEB is a component of exchange transaetibesveen an employer and its employees—of
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salaries and benefits for employee services. OREBrovided to an employee—on a deferred-payment
basis—as part of the total compensation packagaeaffby an employer for employee services each
financial period. The obligation to sacrifice rasmes for OPEB is a present obligation becauseag w
created as a result of employment exchanges tieadyl have occurred.

The net OPEB liability represents the Authorityportionate share of each OPEB plan’s collective
actuarial present value of projected benefit paymattributable to past periods of service, netath
OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position. The net OPEility calculation is dependent on critical lotegm
variables, including estimated average life expesigss, earnings on investments, cost of living
adjustments and others. While these estimateghgsdest information available, unknowable future
events require adjusting these estimates annually.

Ohio Revised Code limits the Authority’s obligatitor this liability to annually required payment$he
Authority cannot control benefit terms or the manire which OPEB are financed; however, the
Authority does receive the benefit of employeesvises in exchange for compensation including OPEB.

GASB 75 assumes the liability is solely the obiigatof the employer, because they benefit from
employee services. OPEB contributions come froesdghemployers and health care plan enrollees which
pay a portion of the health care costs in the fofra monthly premium. The Ohio revised Code pesmit
but does not require the retirement systems toigeoliealthcare to eligible benefit recipients. Any
change to benefits or funding could significantlfeet the net OPEB liability. Resulting adjustme b

the net OPEB liability would be effective when tbleanges are legally enforceable. The retirement
systems may allocate a portion of the employerrdmutions to provide for these OPEB benefits.

The proportionate share of each plan’s unfundeefitsris presented as a long-teret OPEB liability
on the accrual basis of accounting. Any liabilfty the contractually-required OPEB contribution
outstanding at the end of the year is includedniergovernmental payablen both the accrual and
modified accrual bases of accounting.

Plan Description — Ohio Public Employees Retireme&ystem (OPERS)

Health Care Plan Description - The Ohio Public Eagpks Retirement System (OPERS). OPERS
administers three separate plans. The traditiogasipn plan is a cost-sharing, multiple-employdineel
benefit plan. The member-directed plan is a defio@atribution plan and the combined plan is a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit planhnitefined contribution features. Effective Januhry
2022 the Combined Plan is no longer available femtoer selection.

OPERS maintains one health care trust, the 115th€alre Trust (115 Trust), which was established in
2014 to fund health care for the Traditional Pems@ombined and Member-Directed plans.

The OPERS health care plans are reported as atseemployment benefit plans (OPEB) based on the
criteria established by the Governmental AccountBtgndards Board (GASB). Periodically, OPERS
modifies the health care program design to imprthe ongoing solvency of the plans. Eligibility
requirements for access to the OPERS health cdienephave changed over the history of the program
for Traditional Pension Plan and Combined Plan nmamiPrior to January 1, 2015, 10 or more years of
service were required to qualify for health careerage. Beginning January 1, 2015, generally, mesnbe
must be at least age 60 with 20 years of qualifgexyice credit to qualify for health care coverag@0
years of qualifying service at any age.
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Beginning 2016 for Medicare retirees enrolled indidare A and B, and 2022 for non-Medicare retirees,
eligible Traditional Pension Plan and Combined Rietirees were able to participate in the OPERS
Connector (Connector). The Connector, a vendorcgsleby OPERS, assists eligible retirees in the
selection and purchase of Medicare supplementadrage through the Medicare market or selection of
health care plans on the open market. Eligibleaes may receive a monthly allowance in their healt
reimbursement arrangement (HRA) account that carsked to reimburse eligible health care expenses.

The Ohio Revised Code permits, but does not regOIRERS to provide OPEB benefits to its eligible
benefit recipients. Authority to establish and achbealth care coverage is provided in Chapter 45 o
the Ohio Revised Code. OPERS issues a stand-atareial report. Interested parties may obtain@yco
by visiting opers.org or by contacting OPERS atE®B, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-
4642 or by calling (800) 222-7377.

Funding Policy - The Ohio Revised Code providesstatutory authority requiring public employers to
fund postemployment health care through their domtions to OPERS. When funding is approved by
OPERS Board of Trustees, a portion of each emplyantribution to OPERS is set aside to fund
OPERS health care plans.

Employer contribution rates are expressed as e&eptge of the earnable salary of active members. In
fiscal year 2022, the Authority contributed at geraf 14 percent of earnable salary. The Ohio Revis
Code currently limits the employer contributioneratot to exceed 14 percent of covered payroll. A
portion of each employer contribution may be sédeagor the funding of post-employment health care
coverage. The portion of employer contributions tfee Traditional Plan allocated to health care was
zero for 2022.

Employer contribution rates are expressed as a&ptge of the earnable salary of active membaers. |
2022, state and local employers contributed atte o& 14.0 percent of earnable salary. This is the
maximum employer contribution rates permitted by @hio Revised Code.

OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflonsf Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB

The net OPEB liability for OPERS was measured aSeifember 31, 2022, and the total OPEB liability
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was debeeth by an actuarial valuation as of that date. the
Authority’s proportion of the net OPEB liability webased on the Authority’s share of contributiams t
the retirement system relative to the contributiohsll participating entities. Following is infoation
related to the proportionate share and OPEB expense

Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability $5%5,98
Proportion of the Net OPEB Liability - Current Measment Date 0.008879%
Proportion of the Net OPEB Liability - Prior Measuarent Date 0.008858%
Percentage chan 0.0000219
OPEB Expense ($100,240)

At March 31, 2023, the Authority reported deferredgtflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sosirce
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Deferred Outflows of Resources

Changes of assumptions $54,682
Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on OPEB plan investments 111,190
Change in proportionate share $1,241
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $167,113

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Differences between expected and

actual experience $13,966
Changes of assumptions 4,499
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $18,465

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resouareksdeferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ending March 31:

2024 $19,594
2025 40,668
2026 34,673
2027 53,713
Total $148,64:

Actuarial Assumptions - OPERS

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve imsttes of the values of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrenceewénts far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, eost trends. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual review or modification as attesults are compared with past expectationsand
estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting pases are based on the substantive plan and intlade
types of coverage provided at the time of eachataln and the historical pattern of sharing of sost
between OPERS and plan members. The total OPBHitijavas determined by an actuarial valuation
as of December 31, 2021, rolled forward to the mesament date of December 31, 2022.

The actuarial valuation used the following key acial assumptions and methods applied to all period
included in the measurement:
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Actuarial Valuation Date December 31, 2021
Rolled-Forward Measurement Date December 31, 2022
Experience Study 5-Year Period Ended December 31
Actuarial Cost Method Individual Entry Age
Actuarial Assumptions
Single Discount Rate: 5.22 percent
Investment Rate of Return 6.00 percent
Municipal Bond Rate 4.05 percent
Wage Inflation 2.75 percent
Projected Salary Increases, 1 10.75 percent (includes wage inflas
including wage inflation at 2.75%
Health Care Cost Trend Rate 5.5 percent initial,

3.50 percent ultimate in 2036

Pre-retirement mortality rates are based on 130%h@fPub-2010 General Employee Mortality tables
(males and females) for State and Local Governndérisions and 170% of the Pub-2010 Safety
Employee Mortality tables (males and females) fa Public Safety and Law Enforcement divisions.
Post-retirement mortality rates are based on 116&te0PubG-2010 Retiree Mortality Tables (males and
females) for all divisions. Post-retirement mottaliates for disabled retirees are based on thé&NBub
2010 Disabled Retiree Mortality Tables (males agwhdles) for all divisions. For all of the previousl
described tables, the base year is 2010 and ntgntales for a particular calendar year are detegthby
applying the MP-2020 mortality improvement scalesles and females) to all of these tables.

A single discount rate of 5.22% was used to meas$eréotal OPEB liability on the measurement dédte o
December 31, 2022; however, the single discour uged at the beginning of the year was 6.00%.
Projected benefit payments are required to be digedl to their actuarial present value using alsing
discount rate that reflects (1) a long-term expbcéde of return on OPEB plan investments (to therd
that the health care fiduciary net position is ectgd to be sufficient to pay benefits), and (Zpe
exempt municipal bond rate based on an index ofe2-general obligation bonds with an average AA
credit rating as of the measurement date (to tienexhat the contributions for use with the loegat
expected rate are not met). This single discourtwas based on the actuarial assumed rate ohretur
the health care investment portfolio of 6.00% amdumicipal bond rate of 4.05%. The projection dflca
flows used to determine this single discount rasumed that employer contributions will be made at
rates equal to the actuarially determined contidlbutate.Based on these assumptions, the health care
fiduciary net position and future contributions waufficient to finance health care costs throunghytear
2054. As a result, the actuarial assumed long-teqpected rate of return on health care investmeass
applied to projected costs through the year 206d,the municipal bond rate was applied to all ealt
care costs after that date.

The allocation of investment assets within the He@lare portfolio is approved by the Board as oatli

in the annual investment plan. Assets are manageal total return basis with a long-term objective o
continuing to offer a sustainable health care @ogfor current and future retirees. The Systemimany

goal is to achieve and maintain a fully fundedwsdor benefits provided through the defined benefi
pension plans. Health care is a discretionary lierféfe long-term expected rate of return on headtle
investment assets was determined using a buildogkbmethod in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return are develdmpedach major asset class. These ranges are cediain
produce the long-term expected rate of return bighting the expected future real rates of returrihzy
target asset allocation percentage, adjusted flation. Best estimates of geometric real ratesetdirn
were provided by the Board’s investment consult&ot. each major asset class that is included in the
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Health Care portfolio’'s target asset allocation cdisDecember 31, 2022, these best estimates are
summarized in the following table:

Weighted Average
Long-Term Expected

Target Real Rate of Return
Asset Class Allocation (Geometic)
Fixed Income 34.00 % 256 %
Domestic Equities 26.00 4.60
REITs 7.00 4.70
International Equities 25.00 5.51
Risk Parity 2.00 4.37
Other investments 6.00 1.84

Total 100.0C %

During 2022, OPERS managed investments in thresstment portfolios: the Defined Benefit portfolio,
the Health Care portfolio and the Defined Contiidrutportfolio. The Health Care portfolio includdset
assets for health care expenses for the TraditiBeakion Plan, Combined Plan and Member-Directed
Plan eligible members. Within the Health Care mdidf contributions into the plans are assumedeo b
received continuously throughout the year basetheractual payroll payable at the time contribugion
are made, and health care-related payments arenedsio occur mid-year. Accordingly, the money-
weighted rate of return is considered to be theestamall plans within the portfolio. The annual mey-
weighted rate of return expressing investment pardmce, net of investment expenses and adjusted for
the changing amounts actually invested, for theltH&zare portfolio was a loss of 15.6% for 2022.

Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Sharef the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Discount RateThe following table presents the Authority’s projanate share of the net OPEB liability
calculated using the single discount rate of 5.2&ent, as well as what the Authority’s proporti@na
share of the net OPEB liability would be if it weralculated using a discount rate that is one-peage-
point lower or one-percentage-point higher thanctimeent rate:

Single
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(4.22%) (5.22%) (6.22%)
Authority's proportionate share
of the net OPB asse $190,55! $55,98t¢ ($55,052

Changes in the health care cost trend rate mayhalge a significant impact on the net OPEB liailit
The following table presents the net OPEB liabilitgiculated using the assumed trend rates and the
expected net OPEB liability if it were calculatesing a health care cost trend rate that is 1.0epérc
lower or 1.0 percent higher than the current rate.

Current Health Care
Cost Trend Rate
1% Decrease Assumption 1% Increase
Authority's proportionate share
of the net OEB ass¢ $52,47 $55,98¢ $59,93!
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Retiree health care valuations use a health casetmnd assumption with changes over several years
built into that assumption. The near-term rateeceincreases in the current cost of health daeetrend
starting in 2023 is 5.50%. If this trend contindesfuture years, the projection indicates thatrgdeom

now virtually all expenditures will be for healthre. A more reasonable alternative is the health cast
trend will decrease to a level at, or near, wadlation. On this basis, the actuaries project ptamrate
increases will continue to exceed wage inflationdpproximately the next decade, but by less eael, y
until leveling off at an ultimate rate, assumed&o3.50% in the most recent valuation.

NOTE 8 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES
Vacation and sick leave policies are establishethbyBoard of Directors based on local and stats.la

All permanent employees will earn 120 hours sicvéeper year of service. Unused sick leave may be
accumulated without limit. At the time of sepapati employees with 10 or more years of serviceivece
payment for up to 1/3 of the hours accumulatednmiitto exceed 320 hours. All permanent employees
will earn vacation hours accumulated based on keafjservice. Vacation can be carried over frora on
calendar year to the next, subject to maximum arnsoozsed on years of service.

At March 31, 2023, based on the vesting method4 24 was accrued by the Authority for unused
vacation and sick time. The current portion is, 899 and the long term portion is $277,315.

NOTE 9 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is covered for property damage, gahéability, automobile liability, public officids
liability and other crime liabilities through membhip in the State Housing Authority Risk Pool
Association, Inc. (SHARP). SHARP is an insuransk pool comprised of thirty-nine (39) Ohio housing
authorities, of which Greene Metropolitan Housingtt#ority is one. Deductibles and coverage limits a
summarized below:

Type of Coverage Deductible Coverage Limits
Property $1,500 $250,000,000
(per occurrence)

Casualty Package

General Liability 0 2,000,000
Employer Dishonesty 0 500,000
Public Officials Liability 5,000 1,000,000
Automobile 0 2,000,000
Excess Liability 0 4,000,000
Boiler and Machinery 1,000 100,000,000
Excess Crime 0 500,000

Additionally, Workers’ Compensation insurance isimmined through the State of Ohio Bureau of
Workers’ Compensation, in which rates are calcdlagtrospectively. The Authority is also fully ured
through a premium payment plan with Anthem for esypk health care benefits. Settled claims have not
exceeded the Authority’s insurance in any of th&t garee years.
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NOTE 10 -LONG-TERM DEBT

On October 27, 2016, the Authority amended andcaredta loan agreement with U.S. Bank National
Association to amend and restate in its entiretyagmeement with the bank dated March 28, 2007, as
amended on December 1, 2014. The renewed notetfseiamount of $465,242.71 at a rate of 4.75
percent to be repaid in monthly installments of6$8,52 each until April of 2027. The note is a

continuation of the initial agreement and is sedurg real and personal properties owned and opkrate
by the Authority in Greene County, Ohio.

The following is a summary of long-term debt of thethority for the year ended March 31, 2023:

Balance Balanc: Amount Due
Loans 3/31/202: Additions Deletion: 3/31/202: in One Yes
2007 US Bank Amended, 4.7! $ 255,06( $ - $ (44549 $ 210,51 $ 46,87¢
Subtotal Loans 255,060 - (44,549) 210,511 46,879
Other Obligations
Compensated Absenc 194,61¢ 217,59¢ (37,688 374,52« 97,20¢
Net Pension Liabilit 807,83: 1,910,73 - 2,718,571 -
Net OPEB Liability - 55,98¢ - 55,98¢ -
Subtotal Other Obligatiol 1,002,44! 2,184,31! (37,688 3,149,08! 97,2 0¢

Total Loans and Obligations $ 1,257,50! $ 2,184 31 $ (82237 _$ 3.359,59 $ 14408t

Principal and interest requirements to retire tbie payable are as follows:

Fiscal Yea Principa Interes Total
202¢ $ 46,87¢ $ 8,987 $ 55,86¢
202t 49,15t 6,712 55,861
2026 51,541 4,325 55,866
2027 60,867 1,770 62,637
202¢ 2,06¢ - 2,06¢

Totale $ 210,51: $ 21,79¢ $ 232,30

NOTE 11 — CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Authority had no material construction commitiseat March 31, 2023.

NOTE 12 — INTERPROGRAM RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

The Authority has interprogram balances at March2823.

These interprogram Due From/Due To arise from atioon of wages and benefits, supplies and other

costs. Those loans are repaid shortly after yedr elnterprogram balances were eliminated in the
Statement of Net Position.
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NOTE 13 — CONTINGENCIES

The Authority is party to various legal proceedimvgsich seek damages or injunctive relief generally
incidental to its operations and pending projedibe Authority’s management is of the opinion ttiet
ultimate disposition of various claims and legalqeedings will not have a material effect, if aoy,the
financial condition of the Authority.

The Authority has received several Federal and gjednts for specific purposes which are subject to
review and audit by the grantor agencies. Suchtsawetduld lead to requests for reimbursements to
grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed utiteterms of the grant. Based upon prior expeegenc
management believes such disallowances, if ani/b&iimmaterial.

NOTE 14 — COVID-19

The United States and the State of Ohio declarstht® of emergency in March of 2020 due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. Ohio’s state of emergency endedune, 2021 while the national state of
emergency ended in April 2023. The financial intpat COVID-19 and the continuing emergency
measures may impact subsequent periods of the AiythoThe impact on the Authority’s future
operating costs, revenues, and additional recdveny emergency funding, either federal or statenca

be estimated.
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GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
GREENE COUNTY, OHIO
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OMHE NET PENSION LIABILITY

OHIO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Authority's Proportion of the Net Pension

Liability 0.009203%  0.009285%  0.009061%  0.009246%  0.0092 0.009013%  0.008687%  0.008891%  0.009315%  0.009315%
Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability $2,718,570 $807,833 $1,341,737 $1,827,533 $2,519,967 $1,413,965 973570 $1,540,033 $1,123,493 $1,098,117
Authority's Covered Employee Payroll ~ $1,424,793 $1,306,314 $1,312,521 6R14D7 $1,207,034 $1,140,408 $1,098,875 $1,130,208 $122  $1,309,608
Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability as a Percentage

of its Covered- Employee Payroll 190.80% 61.84% 102.23% 144.77% 208.77% 23.99% 179.52% 136.26% 92.00% 83.85%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a

Percentage of the Total Pension

Liability 75.74% 92.62% 86.88% 82.17% 74.70% 84.66% 77.25% 81.08% 86.45% 86.36%

Amounts presented as of the measurement date wehibh prior calendar year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplenyenfarmation
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GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
GREENE COUNTY, OHIO
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY’S CONTRIBUTIONS
OHIO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually Required Contribution $209,390 $199,471 $182,884 $183,753 $176,737 $159,936 $139,700 $131,865 5,628 $146,538
Contributions in Relation to the

Contractually Required Contribution $209,390 $199,471 $182,884 $183,753 $176,737 $159,936 $139,700 $131,865 5,613 $146,538
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $
Authority's Covered Employee Payroll $1,495,643 $1,424,793 $1,306,314 #1521 $1,262,407 $1,207,034 $1,140,408 $1,098,875 $2080 $1,221,150
Contributions as a Percentage of

Covered- Employee Payroll 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 28.25 12.25% 12.00% 12.00% 12.00%

See accompanying notes to the required supplenyanfarmation
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GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
GREENE COUNTY, OHIO
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE AFHE NET OPEB (ASSRT)/LIABILITY
OHIO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Authority's Proportion of the Net OPEB

(Asset)/Liability 0.008879%  0.008858%  0.008646%  0.008705%  0.008568% (09084 0.008126%
Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net

OPEB (Asset)/Liability $55,986 ($277,446)  ($204,647) ,2p,387 $1,117,065 $913,155 $820,774
Authority's Covered Employee Payroll $1,424,793  $1,306,314  $1,326,300 6R14D7 $1,207,034 $1,140,408  $1,098,875
Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net

OPEB (Asset)/Liability as a Percentage

of its Covered- Employee Payroll 3.93% -21.24% -15.43% 95.25% 92.55% 780.0 74.69%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a

Percentage of the Total OPEB

(Asset)/Liability 94.79% 128.23% 115.57% 47.80% 46.33% 54.14% 54.05%

(1) The schedule is intended to show informatiarttie past 10 years and the additional years'imdtion will be displayed

as it becomes available. Information prior to 2@&liot available and amounts presented as of tsunement date
which is the prior calendar year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplenyanfarmation
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GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

GREENE COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY’S OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
OHIO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

Contractually Required Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the
Contractually Required Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)
Authority's Covered Employee Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered- Employee Payroll

(1) The schedule is intended to show informatiortfierpast 10 years and the additional years' irddon will be displayed

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,051 $19,920
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,051 $19,920
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
$1,495,643  $1,424,793  $1,306,314 1521  $1,262,407 $1,207,034  $1,140,408
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.75% 1.75%

as it becomes available. Information prior to 2@liot available.

See accompanying notes to the required supplenyenfarmation
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GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
GREENE COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (TraditionaPlan) - Pension

Changes in benefit terms
2014-2023 There were no changes in benefit terms.

Changes in assumptians
2014-2016: There were no changes in methods andmasiens used in the calculation of actuarial
determined contributions.

2017: The following were the most significant chesi@f assumptions that affected total pensionliigbi
since the prior measurement date.

- Reduction in actuarial assumed rate of retuwmfB.00% to 7.50%
- Decrease in wage inflation from 3.75% to 3.25%
- Change in future salary increases from a rafge26%-10.02% to 3.25%-10.75%

2018: There were no changes in methods and assmsapised in the calculation of actuarial determined
contributions.

2019: The following were the most significant chesi@f assumptions that affected total pensionliigbi
since the prior measurement date.

- Reduction in actuarial assumed rate of retusmfi7.50% to 7.20%

2020: The following were the most significant ches@f assumptions that affected total pensionliigbi
since the prior measurement date.

- Reduction in cost of living adjustments for pd&t/2013 Retirees from 3.00% Simple through 2018
then 2.15 Simple to 1.40% Simple through 2020, th&éb% Simple

2021: The following were the most significant ches@f assumptions that affected total pensionliigbi
since the prior measurement date.

- Changes in both demographic and economic assmsptvith the most notable being a reduction in
the actuarially assumed cost-of-living adjustmdotgpost January 7, 2013 retirees from 1.40 percent
simple through 2020 to 0.50 percent simple thro2@®il.

2022: The following were the most significant chesi@f assumptions that affected total pensionliigbi
since the prior measurement date.

- Reduction in actuarial assumed rate of retusmfi7.20% to 6.90%

Decrease in wage inflation from 3.25% to 2.75%

Change in future salary increases from a ram@25%-10.75% to 2.75%-10.75%

Reduction in cost of living adjustments for p&t/2013 Retirees from 0.50% Simple through 2021
then 2.15 Simple to 3.00% Simple through 2022, thé6% Simple

2023: There were no changes in methods and assursptat affected total pension liability since the
prior measurement date.
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Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (TraditionPlan) - OPEB

Changes in benefit terms:
2018-2020, 2022-2023 : There were no changes iefivé@rms.

2021: On January 15, 2020, the OPERS Board appisessgtal changes to the health care plan offered to
Medicare and non-Medicare retirees in efforts torel@se costs and increase the solvency of thehhealt
care plan. These changes are effective Januar@Z2 and include changes to base allowances and
eligibility for Medicare retirees, as well as repiflg OPERS-sponsored medical plans for non-Medicare
retirees with monthly allowances, similar to thegmam for Medicare retirees. These changes are not
reflected in the current year financial statemehtsyever, they are reflected in the December 32020
measurement date health care valuation. These ebagnificantly decreased the total OPEB liability
for the measurement date December 31, 2020.

Changes in assumptions:
2018: The following were the most significant chesi@f assumptions that affected total OPEB ligbilit
since the prior measurement date.

- The single discount rate changed from 4.23%&6%.

2019: The following were the most significant ches@f assumptions that affected total OPEB liahilit
since the prior measurement date.

- The single discount rate changed from 3.85% %6%.
- The Health Care Cost Trend Rate changed from TH%l, 3.25% ultimate in 2028 to 10.0% initial,
3.25% ultimate in 2029.

2020: The following were the most significant chem@f assumptions that affected total OPEB liahilit
since the prior measurement date.

- The single discount rate changed from 3.96%16%.

- The municipal bond rate changed from 3.71% t&6%.7

- The Health Care Cost Trend Rate changed from%(drdtial, 3.25% ultimate in 2029 to 10.5%
initial, 3.50% ultimate in 2030.

2021: Amounts reported in 2021 reflect changesath lMemographic and economic assumptions. The
single discount rate changed from 3.16 percent@0 percent and the municipal bond rate changead fro
2.75 percent to 2.00 percent. The health caretoasd rate also changed from 10.50 percent irdineal
3.50 percent ultimate in 2030 to 8.5 percent ih#iad 3.50 percent ultimate in 2035.

2022: The following were the most significant chem@f assumptions that affected total OPEB liahilit
since the prior measurement date.

- The municipal bond rate changed from 2.00% td%8

- The Health Care Cost Trend Rate changed from &fi#al, 3.50% ultimate in 2035 to 5.5% initial,
3.50% ultimate in 2034.

- Change in future salary increases from a raf@?2%%-10.75% to 2.75%-10.75%

- Change in wage inflation from 3.25% to 2.75%

2023: The following were the most significant ches@f assumptions that affected total OPEB ligbilit
since the prior measurement date.

- The municipal bond rate changed from 1.84% 65%
- The single discount rate changed from 6.00%28%
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111 Cash - Unrestricted

113 Cash - Other Restricted

114 Cash - Tenant Security Deposits
100 Total Cash

125 Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous

126 Accounts Receivable - Tenants

126.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants
128 Fraud Recovery

128.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud

120 Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

14

N

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets
143 Inventories

150 Total Current Assets

161 Land
16

N

Buildings

163 Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dwellings
164 Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration
16
16

ol

Leasehold Improvements

(&2}

Accumulated Depreciation

160 Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

174 Other Assets
180 Total Non-Current Assets

20

o

Deferred Outflow of Resources

290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources

Greene Metropolitian Housing Authority (OH022)

XENIA, OH

ENTITY WIDE BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY - FDS SCHEDULE SUBMITTED TO HUD

MARCH 31, 2023

14.182 N/C S/IR

Project Total 1“.371 Housing Section 8 1 Bu_s, iness 2 State/Local 14.238 Shelter cocc Subtotal ELIM Total
Choice Vouchers Activities Plus Care
Programs
$1,558,261 $728,672 $145,724 $351,001 $0 $0 $956,119 $3,739,777 $0 $3,739,777
$6,365 $0 $6,365 $6,365
$96,219 $6,366 $16,010 $118,595 $118,595
$1,654,480 $735,037 $152,090 $367,011 $0 $0 $956,119 $3,864,737 $0 $3,864,737
$0 $42 $42 $42
$10,764 $3,623 $652 $15,039 $15,039
-$6,118 -$2,121 $0 -$8,239 -$8,239
$105,016 $0 $105,016 $105,016
-$51,238 -$51,238 -$51,238
$4,646 $53,820 $1,502 $652 $0 $0 $0 $60,620 $0 $60,620
$71,868 $500 $3,910 $6,025 $42,339 $124,642 $124,642
$17,333 $17,333 $17,333
$1,730,994 $789,357 $157,502 $373,688 $0 $0 $1,015,791 $4,067,332 $0 $4,067,332
$2,094,591 $31,400 $299,645 $32,030 $2,457,666 $2,457,666
$20,951,403 $99,915 $1,060,796 $1,683,890 $468,343 $24,264,347 $24,264,347
$377,123 $21,386 $398,509 $398,509
$191,862 $38,408 $267,023 $497,293 $497,293
$2,451,298 $4,717 $56,490 $2,512,505 $2,512,505
-$21,340,049 -$113,084 -$931,165 -$1,133,610 -$818,164 -$24,336,072 -$24,336,072
$4,726,228 $25,239 $182,417 $854,642 $0 $0 $5,722 $5,794,248 $0 $5,794,248
$0 $0 $1 $210,373 $0 $210,374 $210,374
$4,726,228 $25,239 $182,418 $1,065,015 $0 $0 $5,722 $6,004,622 $0 $6,004,622
$268,555 $369,263 $11,190 $22,381 $447,589 $1,118,978 $1,118,978
$6,725,777 $1,183,859 $351,110 $1,461,084 $0 $0 $1,469,102 $11,190,932 $0 $11,190,932
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31
321
322
32
333
341
34
343
310

N

(&

N

351
354
357
350

30

o

40

o

Accounts Payable <= 90 Days

Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable

Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion

Accrued Interest Payable

Accounts Payable - Other Government

Tenant Security Deposits

Unearned Revenue

Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue

Total Current Liabilities

Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue
Accrued Compensated Absences - Non Current

Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources

508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets

511.4 Restricted Net Position

512.4 Unrestricted Net Position

513

600

Total Equity - Net Assets / Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Equity - Net

Greene Metropolitian Housing Authority (OH022)

XENIA, OH

ENTITY WIDE BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY - FDS SCHEDULE SUBMITTED TO HUD

MARCH 31, 2023

14.182 N/C S/IR

Project Total 14?71 Housing Section 8 1 Bu_s, iness 2 State/Local 14.238 Shelter cocc Subtotal ELIM Total
Choice Vouchers Activities Plus Care
Programs
$19,934 $2,292 $149 $858 $1,564 $24,797 $24,797
$24,466 $7,797 $32,263 $32,263
$19,194 $11,216 $1,564 $2,185 $63,050 $97,209 $97,209
$792 $792 $792
$82,991 $9,697 $92,688 $92,688
$103,809 $6,121 $16,010 $125,940 $125,940
$45,021 $1,690 $2,559 $0 $49,270 $49,270
$0 $46,879 $46,879 $46,879
$270,949 $13,508 $9,524 $103,446 $0 $0 $72,411 $469,838 $0 $469,838
$0 $163,632 $163,632 $163,632
$62,543 $37,553 $7,032 $8,670 $161,517 $277,315 $277,315
$665,894 $915,603 $27,747 $55,491 $1,109,821 $2,774,556 $2,774,556
$728,437 $953,156 $34,779 $227,793 $0 $0 $1,271,338 $3,215,503 $0 $3,215,503
$999,386 $966,664 $44,303 $331,239 $0 $0 $1,343,749 $3,685,341 $0 $3,685,341
$6,509 $8,950 $272 $541 $10,850 $27,122 $27,122
$4,726,228 $25,239 $182,417 $644,131 $0 $0 $5,722 $5,583,737 $5,583,737
$6,365 $0 $0 $6,365 $6,365
$993,654 $176,641 $124,118 $485,173 $0 $0 $108,781 $1,888,367 $1,888,367
$5,719,882 $208,245 $306,535 $1,129,304 $0 $0 $114,503 $7,478,469 $0 $7,478,469
$6,725,777 $1,183,859 $351,110 $1,461,084 $0 $0 $1,469,102 $11,190,932 $0 $11,190,932
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70300
70400
70500

70600
70610
70710
70720
70730
70740
70750
70700

71100
71400
71500
71600
70000

91100
91200
91300
91310
91400
91500
91600
91700
91800
91900
91000

92000
92100
92300
92400
92500

Net Tenant Rental Revenue
Tenant Revenue - Other

Total Tenant Revenue

HUD PHA Operating Grants
Capital Grants
Management Fee

Asset Management Fee
Book Keeping Fee

Front Line Service Fee
Other Fees

Total Fee Revenue

Investment Income - Unrestricted
Fraud Recovery

Other Revenue

Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets

Total Revenue

Administrative Salaries
Auditing Fees
Management Fee
Book-keeping Fee
Advertising and Marketing

Employee Benefit contributions - Administrative

Office Expenses
Legal Expense
Travel

Other

Total Operating - Administrative

Asset Management Fee

Tenant Services - Salaries

Employee Benefit Contributions - Tenant Services

Tenant Services - Other

Total Tenant Services

Greene Metropolitian Housing Authority (OHO022)

XENIA, OH
ENTITY WIDE REVENUE AND EXPENSE SUMMARY - FDS SCHEDULE SUBMITTED TO HUD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

14.871 Housing

14.182 N/C SIR

Project Total Choice Section 8 l/-\E:;l:i?/ii::S 2 State/Local l4§|i2 it;elter cocc Subtotal ELIM Total
Vouchers Programs

$986,451 $41,732 $209,007 $1,237,190 $1,237,190
$3,359 $14,632 $17,991 $17,991
$986,451 $0 $45,091 $223,639 $0 $0 $0 $1,255,181 $0 $1,255,181
$1,356,441 $8,648,205 $116,899 $0 $10,121,545 $10,121,545
$296,111 $296,111 $296,111
$384,145 $384,145 -$384,145 $0
$35,760 $35,760 -$35,760 $0
$112,215 $112,215 -$112,215 $0
$499,305 $499,305 -$499,305 $0
$10,800 $0 $10,800 -$10,800 $0
$1,031,425 $1,031,425 -$1,042,225 -$10,800
$1,207 $399 $9 $1,988 $436 $4,039 $4,039
$27,168 $27,168 $27,168
$97,805 $42 $97,847 $97,847
$9,181 $9,181 $9,181
$2,738,015 $8,675,814 $161,999 $236,427 $0 $0 $1,041,042 $12,853,297 -$1,042,225 $11,811,072
$331,485 $319,031 $26,016 $50,862 $392,885 $1,120,279 $1,120,279
$6,671 $5,854 $136 $272 $681 $13,614 $13,614
$232,558 $140,751 $10,836 $7,200 $391,345 -$391,345 $0
$32,490 $78,195 $1,530 $112,215 -$112,215 $0
$2,396 $841 $12 $24 $0 $3,273 $3,273
$146,542 $220,331 $8,507 $11,350 $166,520 $553,250 $553,250
$115,597 $61,367 $2,832 $2,923 $30,800 $213,519 $213,519
$13,682 $1,008 $38 $637 $667 $16,032 $16,032
$156 $72 $228 $228
$5,333 $16,131 $16 $1,427 $4,176 $27,083 $27,083
$886,754 $843,665 $49,923 $74,695 $0 $0 $595,801 $2,450,838 -$503,560 $1,947,278
$33,720 $2,040 $3,600 $39,360 -$39,360 $0
$29,705 $29,705 $29,705
$9,951 $9,951 $9,951
$8,287 $8,287 $8,287
$47,943 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $47,943 $0 $47,943




93100
93200
93300
93600
93700
93800
93000

94100
94200
94300
94500
94000

96110
96100

96200
96210
96300
96400
96600
96800
96000

96710
96700

96900

97000

97300

97400
90000

Water

Electricity

Gas

Sewer

Employee Benefit Contributions - Utilities
Other Utilities Expense

Total Utilities

Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor

Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materials and Other

Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts
Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance

Total Maintenance

Property Insurance

Total insurance Premiums

Other General Expenses
Compensated Absences
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Bad debt - Tenant Rents
Bad debt - Other
Severance Expense

Total Other General Expenses

Interest of Mortgage (or Bonds) Payable

Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost

Total Operating Expenses

Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses

Housing Assistance Payments

Depreciation Expense

Total Expenses

Greene Metropolitian Housing Authority (OH022)

XENIA, OH

ENTITY WIDE REVENUE AND EXPENSE SUMMARY - FDS SCHEDULE SUBMITTED TO HUD

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

14.182 N/C S/IR

Project Total 14?71 Housing Section 8 1 Bu_s, |_n_ess 2 State/Local 14.238 Shelter coccC Subtotal ELIM Total
Choice Vouchers Activities Plus Care
Programs
$27,148 $282 $172 $92 $27,694 $27,694
$30,993 $1,384 $1,417 $586 $34,380 $34,380
$41,533 $1,279 $42,812 $42,812
$30,314 $496 $276 $206 $31,292 $31,292
$4,011 $5,463 $3,932 $3,298 $16,704 $16,704
$129,988 $4,011 $7,625 $5,797 $0 $0 $5,461 $152,882 $0 $152,882
$356,983 $356,983 $356,983
$92,226 $2,829 $5,959 $1,365 $14,256 $116,635 $116,635
$819,450 $10,896 $29,971 $68,458 $29,869 $958,644 -$499,305 $459,339
$149,183 $149,183 $149,183
$911,676 $13,725 $35,930 $69,823 $0 $0 $550,291 $1,581,445 -$499,305 $1,082,140
$102,081 $4,192 $5,446 $8,398 $17,681 $137,798 $137,798
$102,081 $4,192 $5,446 $8,398 $0 $0 $17,681 $137,798 $0 $137,798
$90,683 $90,683 $90,683
$55,036 $51,341 $3,734 $4,272 $40,376 $154,759 $154,759
$108,306 $11,841 $120,147 $120,147
$66,322 $4,649 $5,008 $75,979 $75,979
-$10,695 $4,228 -$6,467 -$6,467
$229,664 $131,329 $8,383 $25,349 $0 $0 $40,376 $435,101 $0 $435,101
$12,108 $12,108 $12,108
$0 $0 $0 $12,108 $0 $0 $0 $12,108 $0 $12,108
$2,341,826 $996,922 $109,347 $199,770 $0 $0 $1,209,610 $4,857,475 -$1,042,225 $3,815,250
$396,189 $7,678,892 $52,652 $36,657 $0 $0 -$168,568 $7,995,822 $0 $7,995,822
$8,058,952 $8,058,952 $8,058,952
$506,211 $3,139 $17,229 $64,153 $41,162 $631,894 $631,894
$2,848,037 $9,059,013 $126,576 $263,923 $0 $0 $1,250,772 $13,548,321 -$1,042,225 $12,506,096
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10010
10020
10091
10092
10100

10000

11020
11030
11040
11170
11180
11190
11210
11270
11620
11630

ENTITY WIDE REVENUE AND EXPENSE SUMMARY - FDS SCHEDULE SUBMITTED TO HUD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Operating Transfer In

Operating transfer Out

Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer In
Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer Out

Total Other financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses

Required Annual Debt Principal Payments

Beginning Equity

Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and Correction of Errors
Administrative Fee Equity

Housing Assistance Payments Equity

Unit Months Available

Number of Unit Months Leased

Excess Cash

Building Purchases

Furniture & Equipment - Dwelling Purchases

Greene Metropolitian Housing Authority (OH022)

XENIA, OH

14.182 N/C S/IR

Project Total é—:c.)?(:?:\il_&uj:;]?s Section 8 1 ABthjisviirt]izzs 2 State/Local 14;33 (S:Ztre‘leter CcoccC Subtotal ELIM Total
Programs

$0 $19,500 $75,522 $95,022 -$95,022 $0
-$75,522 -$19,500 -$95,022 $95,022 $0
$30,000 $30,000 -$30,000 $0
-$30,000 -$30,000 $30,000 $0
$0 $0 $0 $0 $19,500 -$75,522 $56,022 $0 $0 $0
-$110,022 -$383,199 $35,423 -$27,496 $19,500 -$75,522 -$153,708 -$695,024 $0 -$695,024
$0 $0 $0 $45,600 $0 $0 $0 $45,600 $45,600
$5,829,904 $591,444 $0 $1,156,800 -$19,500 $75,522 $268,211 $7,902,381 $7,902,381
$0 $271,112 $271,112 $271,112
$201,880 $201,880 $201,880
$6,365 $6,365 $6,365
4332 17286 204 300 22122 22122
4228 15621 197 286 20332 20332
$1,209,886 $1,209,886 $1,209,886
$222,529 $0 $222,529 $222,529
$73,582 $0 $73,582 $73,582
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GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Federal Grantor/
Pass-through Grantor/
Program/Cluster Title

Assistance
Listing
Number

Passed
Through to
Subrecipients

Total Federal
Expenditures

U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Direct Programs
Housing Voucher Cluster:
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
Public and Indian Housing

Public Housing Capital Fund

Section 8 Project-Based Cluster:

Section 8 New Construction and Substantial Rettabdin

Total Direct Programs

Total U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Develapent

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

See accompanying notes to schedule
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14.871 -$ 8,648,205
14.850 - 1,211,517
14.872 441,035
14.182 116,899
- 10,417,656

- 10,417,656

$ - $ 10,417,656




GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS
2 CFR 200.510(b)(6)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note A — Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Fédenards (the Schedule) includes the federal
award activity of the Greene Metropolitan Housingtiority (the Authority) under programs of the
federal government for the year ended March 31320khe information on this Schedule is prepared in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.Sd€mof Federal Regulations Part 20@niform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, andlid Requirements for Federal Awarggniform
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents onlieet gortion of the operations of the Authority st
not intended to and does not present the finapaisition, changes in net position, or cash flowshef
Authority.

Note B — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reportede accrual basis of accounting. Such expemditu
are recognized following the cost principles camdi in Uniform Guidancevherein certain types of
expenditures may or may not be allowable or maynhiged as to reimbursement.

Note C — Indirect Cost Rate

The Authority has elected not to use the 10-perdeniinimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

Note D — Subrecipients

The Authority provided no federal awards to sulpierits during the fiscal year ending March 31, 2023
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Bastin & Company, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OV ER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MAT TERS
REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Greene Metropolitan Housing Authority
Greene County

538 North Detroit Street

Xenia, OH 45385

To the Board of Commissioners:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing staddd@enerally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to finanaimlita contained irGovernment Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the UnitedeStgGovernment Auditing Standardghe financial
statements of the Greene Metropolitan Housing AitfhaGreene County, (the Authority) as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2023, and the relatedsrtotehe financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Authority's basic financial statememtd have issued our report thereon dated August 4,
2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the finad@tatements, we considered the Authority’s irdern
control over financial reporting (internal contrads a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpo$exmressing our opinions on the financial statetsien
but not for the purpose of expressing an opiniortheneffectiveness of the Authority’s internal aoht
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on tieaiveness of the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal controlexists when the design or operation of a contmésdnot allow
management or employees, in the normal course rdbrp@ing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely b#simaterial weaknesis a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such thatrthes a reasonable possibility that a material raissent

of the Authority’s financial statements will not peevented, or detected and corrected, on a titvedys.

A significant deficiencyis a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencigsjnternal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important gtnda merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for timited purpose described in the first paragrapthisf
section and was not designed to identify all deficies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and thesgefoaterial weaknesses or significant deficienoiay
exist that were not identified. Given these limidas, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider ke material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exatwere not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance abouthehéhe Authority’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed testste®fcompliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, mopicance with which could have a direct and materia
effect on the financial statements. However, @img an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit and accordinglg,do not express such an opinion. The resultapf o
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance twgranatters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to descrileedtope of our testing of internal control and cliamge
and the results of that testing, and not to provddeopinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
internal control or on compliance. This reporaisintegral part of an audit performed in accoréanith

Government Auditing Standard& considering the Authority’s internal control carcompliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable &y other purpose.

% ﬁf(z‘/i?'i éij | [;W%d%% y & &

Williamsburg, Ohio
August 4, 2023
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Bastin & Company, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQ UIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INT ERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUI DANCE

Greene Metropolitan Housing Authority
Greene County

538 North Detroit Street

Xenia, OH 45385

To the Board of Commissioners:
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Greene Metropolitan Housing Autirsrithe Authority) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject tditan the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Compliance Supplemerthat could have a direct and material effect ocheaf Greene
Metropolitan Housing Authority’s major federal pragis for the year ended March 31, 2023. Greene
Metropolitan Housing Authority’s major federal praghs are identified in th€ummary of Auditor's
Resultssection of the accompanying schedule of findings.

In our opinion, Greene Metropolitan Housing Auttyrcomplied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above thatdchale a direct and material effect each of itsomaj
federal programs for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordamitle auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards iapple to financial audits contained @Government
Auditing Standardsssued by the Comptroller General of the UnitedteStaGovernment Auditing
Standardy and the audit requirements of Title 2 UGbde of Federal Regulatiorf3art 200,Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, andlid Requirements for Federal Awardgniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those statsddand the Uniform Guidance are further described i
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compbasection of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Authaaitg to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirementsirglab our audit. We believe that the audit evidene
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to pl®@a basis for our opinion on compliance for thegan
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legérmination of the Authority's compliance wiltiet
compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

The Authority’s Management is responsible for caampte with the requirements referred to above and
for the design, implementation, and maintenanceffgctive internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, ruég] provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to the Authority’s federal programs.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliee

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurabhoetavhether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occundtther due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Authority's compliance based on audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and tteerisfonot a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAASGovernment Auditing Standardasnd the Uniform Guidance will always detect
material noncompliance when it exists. The riskof detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from erras fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenébn
omissions, misrepresentations, or the overridentdrinal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered nahiéthere is a substantial likelihood that, indivally

or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgmerade by a reasonable user of the report on
compliance about the Authority's compliance with tequirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAASovernment Auditing Standardand the Uniform
Guidance, we:

» exercise professional judgment and maintain prajeasskepticism throughout the audit.

* identify and assess the risks of material nonccanpk, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to thegs.rSuch procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the Authority’s dempe with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other praesdas we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

» obtain an understanding of the Authority's interc@ahtrol over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are ap@tepn the circumstances and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordandh whe Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectisenaf the Authority's internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expeess

We are required to communicate with those chargéudgovernance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any fogmt deficiencies and material weaknesses innate
control over compliance that we identified durihg awudit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over complianegists when the design or operation of a contrarov
compliance does not allow management or employedke normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, nomg@nce with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. rhaterial weakness in internal control over comptiaris a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in imal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliangilh a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected andembed, on a timely basis. gignificant deficiency in
internal control over compliands a deficiency, or a combination of deficienciesinternal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requiremenra ééderal program that is less severe than a iakter
weakness in internal control over compliance, ygtartant enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance
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Our consideration of internal control over comptiarwas for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compié section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over complianceatttmight be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliancevén these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control ov@mpliance that we consider to be material wealasess
as defined above. However, material weaknessesgaifisant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of esqimg an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such déginis expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control ogempliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and ésults of this testing based on the requiremeftise
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is naitable for any other purpose.

m [: Ay, OZJtC
%ﬁw 52/ /’?7% /

Williamsburg, Ohio
August 4, 2023
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GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
2 CFR § 200.515
MARCH 31, 2023

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Type of financial statement opinion

Were there any material control weaknesses reported
at the financial statement level?

Were there any other significant deficiencies teiinal
control reported at the financial statement level?

Was there any reported material noncompliance tegor
at the financial statement level?

Were there any material internal control weaknesses
reported for major federal programs?

Were there any other significant deficiencies teiinal
control reported for major federal programs?

Type of major programs’ compliance opinion
Are there any reportable findings?

Major programs:

Dollar threshold to distinguish between Type A/Bgrnams

Low risk auditee?

Unmodified

No

No

No

No

No

Unmodified
No

Assistance Listing #14.850
Public and Indian Housing

Assistance Listing #14.871
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
Housing Voucher Cluster

Type A: >$750,000
Type B: all others

Yes

FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None
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GREENE METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
MARCH 31, 2023

There were no findings reported in the prior avejitort.
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